
 
 

AGENDA 

DATE: January 20, 2026 

TO: Statesville Planning Board 

FROM: Matthew Kirkendall, Senior Planner  
 
CC: Erika Martin, Planning Director  
 Herman Caulder, Assistant Planning Director 
 Joseph Campbell, Planner 2            
 
SUBJECT: Planning Board Meeting 

 

The Statesville Planning Board will hold a meeting on January 27, 2026, at 6:00 p.m. in the 
Council Chamber of City Hall, 227 South Center Street, Statesville, NC. 

 
1. Welcome and approval of the agenda and minutes from December 16, 2025, Planning 

Board Meeting.   
 

2. ZC25-15 Japul Road (Harmony Vistas Subdivision): Recommendation for a rezoning 
application for properties located at the end of Japul Road and along Beauty Street, 
Statesville, NC; Iredell County Tax Map Parcel #’s 4754-25-4679 and 4754-35-2055; to 
rezone from R-10 (Urban Low Density Single-Family Zoning) District to R-8 CZ (Medium 
Density Single-Family Residential Conditional Zoning) District. 
 

3. ZC26-01 540 Monroe Street Property: Courtesy reading for a rezoning application filed 
for property located at 540 Monroe Street; parcel number 4744-41-0508; to rezone from 
B-5 (General Business) zoning district to R-5 (High-Density Single-Family Residential) 
zoning district. 
 

4. ZC26-02 149 Weeping Cherry Property: Courtesy reading for a request to remove a 
portion of parcel 4735-17-3043 from the City of Statesville ETJ (Extra-Territorial 
Jurisdiction) zoning district to Iredell County’s jurisdiction. 

 
5. Adjourn. 



 

Page 1 of 5 
 

Planning Board Called Meeting Minutes 
City Hall Council Chambers – 227 S. Center Street 

December 16, 2025 – 6:00 p.m. 
 
 
Members Present: Alisha Cordle, Bernard Robertson, Joel Mashburn, Darrin Rucker, Mark 

Tart 
 
Members Absent: Roger Bejcek, Trey Robertson, Cory Sloan 
 
 
Staff:   Matthew Kirkendall, Erika Martin, Joseph Campbell 
 
 
Chairwoman Cordle called the meeting to order. 
 
Approval of Minutes 
 
B. Robertson made a motion to approve the minutes from the November 25, 2026, 
Planning Board minutes. Seconded by Mashburn. The motion carried unanimously. 
 
 
ZC25-15 Harmony Vistas: Courtesy Hearing for a rezoning application filed by Mr. Mark 
Miserocchi of Harmony Investing LLC; for properties located at the end of Japul Road and 
along Beauty Street, Statesville, NC; Iredell County Tax Map Parcel #’s 4754-25-4679 and 
4754-35-2055; To rezone from R-10 (Urban Low Density Single-Family Zoning) District to 
R-8 CZ (Medium Density Single-Family Residential Conditional Zoning) District. 
 
 

Rezoning Requested  

Matthew Kirkendall presented this rezoning request that has been initiated by the property owner, Mark 
Miserocchi of Harmony Investing LLC, for two parcels (approximately 28.42 acres) located at the end 
of Japul Road and along Beauty Street. The request is to rezone them from R-10 (Urban Low Density 
Single-Family Residential) District to R-8 CZ (Medium Density Single-Family Residential) Zoning 
District. 

Evaluation 

This is a conditional rezoning, meaning the project will be tied to the concept plan (see attached), 
along with any conditions approved by the Planning Board and City Council. The properties are 
not located within the city limits and will need to be annexed. The proposed project site is 
approximately 28 acres located at the end of Japul Road and along Beauty Street. The applicant 
is applying to rezone the properties to build a single-family home subdivision under the Cluster 
provision. They have committed to the following conditions:  
 

1. The development will include a maximum of 70 single-family detached homes. A reduction in 
units up to 10% may occur due to engineering and/or other factors; such a decrease will be 
approved by staff. 

2. An enhanced landscaping will be provided at the entrance off Japul Road. 
3. A minimum of two (2) building materials will be utilized on the front of homes. 



 

Page 2 of 5 
 

4. The HOA will maintain all common areas and SCM ponds 
5. Providing Police Department approved security cameras at the entrances. 
6. Dedicate 20’ easement with 10’ wide paved trail for Greenway trail to be maintained by 

the City of Statesville. 
7. Stub to Greenbriar Ridge subdivision 

The purpose of the Cluster Subdivision (Article 7.01 of the UDC) is to provide creative and 
innovative developments that minimize land disturbance and maximize the preservation and 
conservation of sensitive natural areas and open space by grouping dwellings in clusters through 
variation of lot sizes and uses of open space. The minimum lot size in the R-8 Cluster 
development for single-family homes can be reduced from 8,000 square feet to 6,000, with the 
difference added to open space. Furthermore, in cluster subdivision proposals, lots must conform 
to the setback requirements for the underlying zoning district except that no minimum lot width is 
required (other than a required 10-foot separation between buildings). 
 
The project is required to provide an 8ft wide (Type A) street yards landscaping buffer along all 
streets and a 15ft wide (Type C) vegetative buffers on all sides.  

There are two proposed entrances to the site, Japul Road and the other connection will be through 
the Greenbriar Ridge subdivision currently under construction to the South. There will also be 
sidewalks, curbs, and gutters as well as street trees along both sides of all streets.   
 
The 2019 Mobility and Development Plan calls for a 10ft greenway (20ft easement) to be 
constructed by the developer and will be maintained by the City. In addition, there will be privately 
maintained walking trails on site. 
 
The 2045 Land Development Plan shows the property to be in an area suitable for Complete 
Neighborhood 2 Character Intent which includes single-family residential uses. This is also with 
the Tier 1 Growth Area. In addition, water, sewer and Statesville Public Power will serve the site. 
   
The surrounding zoning districts and land uses are as follows: 
 
North of the Site: R-10 (Urban Low Density Single-Family Residential) District, with 

existing single-family homes within the Jan Joy Acres Subdivision. 
 
East of the Site: RA (Residential Agricultural) and R-15 (Urban Fringe Low Density 

Residential) Districts, with single-family homes within the Hope Bros 
Builders Subdivision. 

 
South of the Site: R-8 CZ (Medium Density Single-Family Conditional Zoning) District, 

with single-family homes proposed in the recently approved Greenbriar 
Ridge Subdivision. 

 
West of the Site: R-8MFM (Medium Density Multi-Family and Manufactured 

Residential) District, with existing single-family homes within the 
Lakeridge Subdivision. 

 
 

Previous or Relevant Actions 
 



 

Page 3 of 5 
 

City Council approved the rezoning of the adjacent property to the south to R-8 CZ in 2023, the 
Greenbriar Ridge Subdivision. 

 
Departmental Recommendation 

The 2045 Land Development Plan is supportive of these parcels being rezoned, as it calls for this area 
to be Complete Neighborhood 2.  Therefore, staff recommends approval to rezone the property from 
R-10 (Urban Low Density Single-Family Residential) District to R-8 CZ (Medium Density Single-Family 
Residential) District, (see 2045 LDP Land Use & Character Map), contingent upon annexation and the 
conditions listed on the concept plan. 

Attachments: 

1. Location Map 
2. Aerial Photo Map 
3. Site Photos 
4. Current Zoning & Utilities Map 
5. 2045 LDP Land Use & Character Map  
6. Complete Neighborhood 2 Character Intent 
7. Concept Plan 
8. Zoning Consistency Statement 

 
Mashburn asked if the parcel was current in county zoning. Kirkendall explained it was in the 
City’s ETJ, but still under City zoning and that annexation would be required to prevent outside 
rates. Mashburn asked about the street connections and if they would connect off Beauty Street. 
Kirkendall stated with the floodplain he did not think a connection to beauty would be feasible. 
 
Erika Martin, Planning Director, explain to the board that Japul Rd does connect to Beauty Street 
currently, but there would not be any further connections to Beauty St. 
 
Ian Anderson, architect for a land-planning consultant for the project, came to the podium to give 
a presentation about the proposed development and answer any questions from the board. 
Anderson stated that they constructed this project to meet the surrounding areas, and considered 
it an extension of Greenbriar Ridge, a project directly to the south of this proposed project. 
 
B. Robertson asked if sewer would be tied to City of Statesville. Anderson confirmed. B. 
Robertson stated that it seems there are areas down there that had some standing water issues. 
Anderson confirmed there were some floodplain issues that are going to need to be addressed 
and referenced some information learned during the community meeting.  
 
Anderson then stated that his company had done a deep dive on the questions regarding the 
ownership of the street and that it was found the road was dedicated but was not adopted by the 
City of Statesville and that no entity accepted that road into the portfolio of maintenance and that 
it has not been maintained. Anderson also stated the right-of-way is there, and that the developer 
would have to build that road and including drainage improvements and believed this 
development can fix long standing issues with that road. Anderson stated there was concern 
brought forward by the community on if that road will be able to support the development. 
Anderson stated that Japul Rd is dedicated public road and not private. 
 



 

Page 4 of 5 
 

Tart asked if the ROW would be abandoned. Anderson stated the road would be built to the City 
of Statesville’s standard and then be dedicated. Tart said specifically the loop within the property. 
Anderson said it would be abandoned, but it is currently unrecorded. Tart asked about the open 
space regarding the cluster subdivision. Anderson stated most of the active open space is internal 
to the lots. Anderson stated the plan was to take some of the more topographically challenged 
areas and grade to create additional open space. Tart asked if there would be any amenities for 
the kids in the development. Anderson there were not any plans at this moment. 
 
Mashburn asked about the greenway. Anderson explained it would connect with Greenbriar Ridge 
to the south, and to the north it would connect with Beauty Street, with plans for a little open space 
area.  
 
Tart asked if the stormwater control measures would help with the flooding. Anderson stated it 
should. He also stated there was a large basin that was being examined to address the flooding.  
 
Chairwoman Cordle opened the public hearing. 
 
Marie Martin and Edith Butch of Japul Rd came to the podium and expressed concern about the 
quality of the culvert that is underneath Japul Rd supporting large vehicles and a heavy increase 
in traffic. M. Martin also stated that the ROW was not 60’ and is instead notated at 40’. M. Martin 
asked why they would need to come through Japul Rd instead of Beauty Street. 
 
Dale and Katherina Weddington of Japul Rd spoke about a deeded ROW to their home. K. 
Weddington explains that their driveway is what is considered “Japul Rd” and expressed concern 
about an increase in traffic, loss of their property, and access to their property. Dale Weddington 
expressed concerns about increase in flooding. K. Martin also expressed concern about the 
connection to the Greenbriar Ridge subdivision, bringing more traffic than just what is anticipated 
from Harmony Vistas. Katherina explained they were told they had a deeded ROW 
 
Tart asked staff if the developer would be improving the standard of Japul Rd all the way up to 
Beauty Street. Erika Martin, Planning Director, stated the developer would have a chance to 
address the questions at the end of the public hearing. 
 
Barry Martin came to the podium and explained the existing dam has had a lot that has washed 
away over the years and that it is extremely below standard. B. Martin explained that the dam 
would need to be rebuilt entirely, and that it has historically run over Japul Rd from one pond to 
another. 
 
Jennifer Estrada of Stonecrest Dr came to the podium and spoke about the flooding that occurs 
on Beauty Street, which is Stonecrest Drive’s only exit out of the community. Estrada also said 
she spoke with members in the City’s Stormwater division about the mapping of the floodplains 
and said they expect the changes in the floodplain to significantly increase. 
 
Helen Washburn of Japul Rd was concerned about the effect of the development with the wildlife 
that inhabits the pond, and how the roads will be maintained after being dedicated to the City of 
Statesville.  
 
Chairwoman Cordle closed the public hearing. 
 
Chairwomen Cordle asked the applicant to return to the podium to answer some of these 
questions. Anderson came back and pointed out to the board and audience where the sewer 



 

Page 5 of 5 
 

service lines would be, connected over to Beauty Street instead of going down Japul Rd. 
Anderson stated that it is state law for the stormwater to match historical rates, and that the ponds 
would be rated to a 100 year event and that the spillover would not increase, but instead would 
alleviate the current issues. Anderson stated the culverts would be replaced with highly more 
sophisticated systems. He stated the sewer lines would be pressurized and would not require lift 
stations or gravity, and that they would not spill over into people’s yards. Anderson claimed they 
would be fixing the issues that these people are currently facing. 
 
B. Robertson asked how wide the developer was going to make the ROW going up Japul Rd. 
Anderson said it would be two lanes, with curb and gutter and that the plat references a 60’ ROW. 
Rucker asked if the plans shown are contingent on annexation. Anderson stated they intended to 
seek annexation, which would be why they will build the roads to City of Statesville standards.  
 
Mashburn asked about the community meeting with the developer and asked if there were copies 
of the minutes and attendance sheets. Anderson stated there was a community meeting summary 
report. Mashburn stated that the board did not receive a copy of this, and that this was the first 
time the board had heard about the concerns from the community. 
 
Tart made a comment about the culvert that is currently in place at 3ft and stated it would be a 
challenge to stay at that diameter. Anderson agreed and stated if they had to raise the driveway 
any that it would likely be at that pond and should only be raised a few inches. 
 
Cordle asked Kirkendall back to the podium and asked what the easement ROW for Japul Rd. 
Kirkendall stated the city and ETJ line started somewhere down Japul Rd. Kirkendall also stated 
that Japul Rd is a privately maintained access. 
 
Tart stated that there was no survey or deed provided and with the easement right of way 
concerns did not make him comfortable. E. Martin stated the board could set forth a condition that 
if this board would recommend approval or denial, only if the easement concerns were addressed. 
Mashburn stated he would like to see some additional information that was not provided at this 
meeting. Cordle agreed and stated she would like to see the community meeting summary as 
well. 
 
Mashburn motioned to table ZC25-15 Harmony Vistas: Courtesy Hearing for a rezoning 
application filed by Mr. Mark Miserocchi of Harmony Investing LLC; for properties located 
at the end of Japul Road and along Beauty Street, Statesville, NC; Iredell County Tax Map 
Parcel #’s 4754-25-4679 and 4754-35-2055; To rezone from R-10 (Urban Low Density Single-
Family Zoning) District to R-8 CZ (Medium Density Single-Family Residential Conditional 
Zoning) District, until the next Planning Board meeting on January 27th, 2026. Seconded 
by B. Robertson. The motion carried unanimously. 
 
 
B. Robertson made a motion to adjourn, seconded by Tart. The motion carried 
unanimously. 



 

City of Statesville 

Staff Report 
To: Planning Board Members 

From: Matthew Kirkendall, Senior Planner 

Date: January 27, 2025 

Re: ZC25-15 Japul Road (Harmony Vistas ), Statesville, NC; Iredell County Tax Map Parcel # ‘s 
4754-25-4679 and 4754-35-2055; to rezone from R-10 (Urban Low Density Single-Family 
Residential) District to R-8 CZ (Medium Density Multi-Family Residential Conditional 
Zoning) District. 

Action Requested  

This rezoning request has been initiated by the property owner, Mark Miserocchi of Harmony Investing 
LLC, for two parcels (approximately 28.42 acres) located at the end of Japul Road and along Beauty 
Street. The request is to rezone them from R-10 (Urban Low Density Single-Family Residential) 
District to to R-8 CZ (Medium Density Single-Family Residential) Conditional Zoning District. 

Summary of Information 

This is a conditional rezoning, meaning the project will be tied to the concept plan (see attached), along 
with any conditions approved by the Planning Board and City Council. The properties are not located 
within the city limits and will need to be annexed. The proposed project site is approximately 28 acres 
located at the end of Japul Road and along Beauty Street. The applicant is applying to rezone the 
properties to build a single-family home subdivision under the Cluster provision.  
 
A community input meeting was held on November 18, 2025 attended by 7 members of the community. 
Concerns voiced at this meeting including the access from Japul Road and the current condition of Japul 
Road, increased traffic, and flooding issues. The developer has revised the concept plan to remove 
access from Japul Road.  
 
They have committed to the following conditions:  
 

1. The development will include a maximum of 70 single-family detached homes. A reduction in 
units up to 10% may occur due to engineering and/or other factors; such a decrease will be 
approved by staff. 

2. A minimum of two (2) building materials will be utilized on the front of homes. 
3. The HOA will maintain all common areas and SCM ponds 
4. Providing Police Department approved security cameras at the entrances. 
5. Dedicate 20’ easement with 10’ wide paved trail for Greenway trail to be maintained by the 

City of Statesville. 



 
 

6. Stub to Greenbriar Ridge subdivision 

The purpose of the Cluster Subdivision (Article 7.01 of the UDC) is to provide creative and innovative 
developments that minimize land disturbance and maximize the preservation and conservation of 
sensitive natural areas and open space by grouping dwellings in clusters through variation of lot sizes 
and uses of open space. The minimum lot size in the R-8 Cluster development for single-family homes 
can be reduced  from 8,000 square feet to 6,000, with the difference added to open space. Furthermore, 
in cluster subdivision proposals, lots must conform to the setback requirements for the underlying 
zoning district except that no minimum lot width is required (other than a required 10-foot separation 
between buildings). 
 
The project is required to provide an 8ft wide (Type A) street yards landscaping buffer along all streets 
and a 15ft wide (Type C) vegetative buffers on all sides.  

Per the revised plan, there is one proposed entrance to the site, through the Greenbriar Ridge 
subdivision currently under construction to the South. There will also be sidewalks, curbs, and 
gutters as well as street trees along both sides of all streets.   
 
The 2019 Mobility and Development Plan calls for a 10ft greenway (20ft easement) to be 
constructed by the developer and will be maintained by the City. In addition, there will be 
privately maintained walking trails on site. 
 
The concept plan shows 12.58 acres of total open space, including 2.87 acres of active open space. The 
active open space does include the greenway that will be dedicated to the city. 
 
The 2045 Land Development Plan shows the property to be in an area suitable for Complete 
Neighborhood 2 Character Intent which includes single-family residential uses. This is also with the 
Tier 1 Growth Area. In addition, water, sewer, and Statesville Public Power will serve the site. 
   
The surrounding zoning districts and land uses are as follows: 
 
North of the Site: R-10 (Urban Low Density Single-Family Residential) District, with existing 

single-family homes within the Jan Joy Acres Subdivision. 
 
East of the Site: RA (Residential Agricultural) and R-15 (Urban Fringe Low Density 

Residential) Districts, with single-family homes within the Hope Bros Builders 
Subdivision. 

 
South of the Site: R-8 CZ (Medium Density Single-Family Conditional Zoning) District, with 

single-family homes proposed in the recently approved Greenbriar Ridge 
Subdivision. 

 
West of the Site: R-8MFM (Medium Density Multi-Family and Manufactured Residential) 

District, with existing single-family homes within the Lakeridge Subdivision. 
 



 
 

 
 

Previous or Relevant Actions 
 

City Council approved the rezoning of the adjacent property to the south to R-8 CZ in 2023, the 
Greenbriar Ridge Subdivision. The Planning Board recommended tabling their recommendation until 
the January meeting. Since then, the applicant has proposed removing the entrance to the site from 
Japul Road (see concept plan). 

 
Departmental Recommendation 

The 2045 Land Development Plan is supportive of these parcels being rezoned, as it calls for this area 
to be Complete Neighborhood 2, is located in the ETJ, and all utilities are available. 

Therefore, staff recommends Option 1 - Approval according to the original concept plan with the 
connection to Japul Road to rezone the properties, contingent upon annexation and the conditions 
listed on the concept plan. However, staff acknowledges that the UDC and Fire Code does not require 
the connection. 

Attachments: 

1. Location Map 
2. Aerial Photo Map 
3. Site Photos 
4. Current Zoning & Utilities Map 
5. 2045 LDP Land Use & Character Map  
6. Complete Neighborhood 2 Character Intent 
7. Concept Plan 
8. Revised Concept Plan 
9. Community Meeting Report 
10. Zoning Consistency Statement 



 

Location Map – ZC25-15 Harmony Vistas 



 

Aerial Photo – ZC25-15 Harmony Vistas 



 

Site Photo – ZC25-15 Harmony Vistas – View from current end of Japul Road 



 

Site Photo – ZC25-15 Harmony Vistas – View from Beauty Street 



 

Current Zoning and Utilities Map – ZC25-15 Harmony Vistas 



 

2045 Land Development Plan Map – ZC25-15 Harmony Vistas 







ian.anderson
Ellipse

ian.anderson
Text Box
X

ian.anderson
Text Box
X

ian.anderson
Text Box
X

ian.anderson
Text Box
X

ian.anderson
Text Box
X

ian.anderson
Ellipse

ian.anderson
Text Box
X

ian.anderson
Text Box
X

ian.anderson
Text Box
X

ian.anderson
Text Box
X

ian.anderson
Text Box
X

ian.anderson
Text Box
REVISED

ian.anderson
Text Box
01.06.2026

ian.anderson
Callout
ELIMINATE PROPOSED ACCESS TO JAPUL ROAD AND PROVIDE CUL-DE-SAC 

ian.anderson
Text Box
JAPUL RD. 

ian.anderson
Text Box
ORA DR.

ian.anderson
Text Box
GREENBRIAR RD.

ian.anderson
Text Box
BEAUTY ST.



   Harmony Vistas Rezoning 

COMMUNITY MEETING REPORT 
Petitioner: Harmony Investing 

 
This Community Meeting Report is provided to the City of Statesville Planning Department pursuant to the 
provisions of the rezoning requirements as specified in the Statesville Unified Development Ordinance.  

PERSONS AND ORGANIZATIONS CONTACTED WITH DATE AND EXPLANATION OF HOW CONTACTED: 
A representative of the Petitioner mailed a written notice of the date, time, and location of the Community Meeting 
to the individuals and organizations identified on Exhibit A - Community Meeting Mailing List attached hereto by 
depositing such notice in the U.S. mail on November 7th, 2025. A copy of the written notice is attached as 
Exhibit B - Community Meeting Notice. 

DATE, TIME AND LOCATION OF MEETING: 
The Community Meeting was held on November 18, 2025 from 6:00PM to 8:00PM at the Unity Center (145 
Salisbury Rd, Statesville, NC 28677).  

PERSONS IN ATTENDANCE AT MEETING: 
The Community Meeting was held in-person at the time and place noted above and was attended by seven (7) 
members of the community during the two-hour meeting duration. The Petitioner was represented at the 
Community Meeting by Ian Anderson (Merrick and Company) and Nic Peters (Merrick and Company). The 
community member attendance list is provided in Exhibit C – Community Meeting Sign-In Sheet.  

SUMMARY OF PRESENTATION/DISCUSSION: 
The Petitioners utilized a PowerPoint presentation and printed exhibits that described the proposed development and 
rezoning application. A copy of the PowerPoint presentation and exhibits has been provided as Exhibit D – Community 
Meeting Presentation. The following is a summary of the discussion points with the community members in 
attendance: 

• The community members who attended the meeting live on the unimproved portion of Japul Road that is 
south of the existing ponds located on either side of the road. The community members were unified in their 
concern about access to the proposed site via Japul Road. These residents stated that public right-of-way 
along their unimproved portion of Japul Road does not exist and that this section of the roadway is a private 
driveway.  

• The community members stated that the unimproved section of Japul Road is frequently flooded with 
stormwater during heavy rainfall events thereby preventing them from accessing their homes until the 
flooding subsides. They noted that they had attempted to contact both the City and County about the 
conditions of this road however neither jurisdiction claimed ownership of this section of the road therefore the 
residents on this road have been maintaining the road themselves which implied the road was privately 
owned.  

• The Merrick representatives stated that the recently completed land survey designated Japul Road as public 
right-of-way however they would investigate the ownership after the meeting to confirm if this is a public or 
private roadway.  

• In addition to the ownership of the road, the residents were concerned that the current condition of the road 
would not support the volume of traffic that would be generated from the proposed development. The Merrick 
representatives noted that the City would require the developer to improve the road to their municipal 
engineering standards which would support the additional traffic volumes from the new development. The 
Merrick representatives also noted that modifications to this section of Japul Road would include drainage 
improvements that would benefit all of the residents along the road.  

• The community members acknowledged that the property is currently zoned for residential development and 
they accepted that this property will likely be developed as such in the future. Regardless of the zoning, their 
primary concern was access to the proposed development along Japul Road as related to roadway ownership 
and the ability of the road to support increased traffic volumes generated from the proposed development.  

  

 
  



Exhibit A - Community Meeting Mailing List 

  



Exhibit A - Community Meeting Mailing List 

 

 



Exhibit A - Community Meeting Mailing List 

  



Exhibit B - Community Meeting Notice  



Exhibit C - Community Meeting Sign-In Sheet / Attendance List 

 

 
  



Exhibit D - Community Meeting Presentation 

 

 

 
  



Exhibit D - Community Meeting Presentation 

 

 

 

 
  



Exhibit D - Community Meeting Presentation 

 

 



 
 
 
To: Statesville Planning Board 
 
From: Matthew Kirkendall, Senior Planner 
 
Date: January 27, 2026  
 
Subject: Rezoning 
 
Case: ZC25-15 Japul Road (Harmony Vistas Subdivision) 
 
Address:   Properties located at the end of Japul Road and along Beauty Street 

 
 Option 1: Approve (Staff Recommendation)  

The zoning amendment is recommended for approval with the agreed upon 
conditions and is consistent with the City’s comprehensive land use plan, is 
reasonable, and in the public interest because the 2045 Land Development Plan 
supports the continuation of residential uses in this area and keeping the connection 
according to the original concept plan. 

 Option 2: Approve with modifications  

The zoning amendment is recommended for approval with modifications with the 
agreed upon conditions which would include removing the connection to Japul Road 
which is consistent with the City’s comprehensive plan, is reasonable, and in the public 
interest because the 2045 Land Development Plan supports the continuation of 
residential uses in this area and that neither the Unified Development Code nor the 
Fire Code require a second roadway connection. 

 Option 3: Deny 

The zoning amendment is recommended for denial because it is inconsistent with 
the City’s comprehensive land plan and is not reasonable, nor in the public interest. 
Specifically, the land use plan calls for this area to be redeveloped as Complete 
Neighborhood 2, and this development is not in harmony with the surrounding area. 
Therefore, allowing this type of residential development would be in conflict with this 
long-term goal.  

  
 ____  
Date:                       Alisha Cordle, Chairperson  Date:             Matthew Kirkendall, Senior Planner 



 

City of Statesville 

Staff Report 
To: Planning Board Members 

From: Joseph Campbell, Planner II 

Date: January 27, 2026 

Re: ZC26-01 540 Monroe St, Statesville, NC; Iredell County Tax Map Parcel # ‘s 4744-41-0508; 

To rezone from B-5 (General Business) Zoning District to R-5 (High Density Single-Family 

Residential) District. 

Action Requested  

The rezoning request, initiated by Hedley Homes LLC, on behalf of property owners, Harry Sampsel 

and Joe Best, is for one vacant lot (approximately 1.08 acres) located at the corner of Monroe and Cass 

Street. The request is to rezone them from B-5 (General Business) Zoning District to R-5 (High Density 

Single-Family Residential) Zoning District. 

Summary of Information 

This is a straight rezoning; therefore, no conditions may be added. The properties are located within the 

city limits and will not need to be annexed.  The properties are in a community that has a mixture of 

existing single-family houses and businesses.  Although the B-5 (General Business) District is dominant 

in the area, there are also some parcels that are zoned R-5 (High Density Single-Family Residential) 

District with single-family homes present (see Current Zoning & Utilities map).  This is a transitional 

area with many existing homes within the B-5 zoning district.   

 

In the Uses permitted in the B-5 (General Business) zoning district shall be limited to those indicated 

in Table 3-1, which include lumberyards, storage units, auto body shops and other commercial activities 

that generate loud noises, heavy truck traffic or other potential nuisances to neighboring residential uses. 

If rezoned to R-5 (High Density Single-Family Residential) Zoning District; Uses permitted in this 

zoning district shall be limited to those indicated in Table 3-1, including detached single-family 

residential uses. 

The 2045 Land Development Plan shows the property to be in an area suitable for Downtown 

Traditional Neighborhood 2 Character Intent which includes primary uses such as residential, and 

secondary uses as Institutional, Neighborhood-scale corner, commercial/office and pocket parks.  

 

The surrounding zoning districts and land uses are as follows: 

 

North of the Site: HI (Heavy Industrial) District, with single-family homes and some R-5 in 

the vicinity. 



 

 

 

East of the Site: B-5 (General Business) District, with single-family homes and some R-5 in 

the vicinity. 

 

South of the Site: B-5 (General Business) District, with single-family homes and some R-5 in 

the vicinity. 

 

West of the Site: B-5 (General Business) District, with a trucking repair company and some R-

5 in the vicinity.  

 

Previous or Relevant Actions 

 

City Council approved the rezoning of two lots on Bond Street in 2025, five of the lots located at the 

intersection of Monroe Road and Jost Street in 2024, and three of the lots in the same block were 

rezoned to residential in 2022. 

 

Departmental Recommendation 

The 2045 Land Development Plan is supportive of these parcels being rezoned to residential due to 

existing conditions. There are several R-5 Residential Districts South and East of the site that have been 

rezoned from HI and B-5 (General Business) to R-5.  Additionally, the small area plan for Monroe 

Street supports this parcel to transition to a Neighborhood District. 

Therefore, staff recommends consistency statement option 1 to approve rezoning this property from 

B-5 (General Business) District to R-5 (High Density Single-Family Residential) District, (see 2045 

LDP Land Use & Character Map). 

 

Attachments: 

1. Location Map 

2. Aerial Photo Map 

3. Site Photos 

4. Current Zoning & Utilities Map 

5. 2045 LDP Land Use & Character Map  

6. Downtown Neighborhood 2 Character Intent 

7. Zoning Consistency Statement 

 

 



 

    Location Map – 540 Monroe Street 



 

Aerial Photo – 540 Monroe Street 



 

         View from Monroe Street 



 

         View from Cass Street 



 

Current Zoning and Utilities – 540 Monroe Street 



 

2045 Land Development Plan 



Statesville LDP 2045  |  Adopted June 6, 2022       65 

Downtown Traditional Neighborhood 2 
Character Intent 

Downtown Traditional Neighborhood 2 areas include established inner ring neighborhoods that surround the 
Downtown Center and Downtown Traditional Neighborhood 1 areas. These are older neighborhoods that do not 
currently have a historic designation and have a more varied pattern of development than Downtown Traditional 
Neighborhoods 1 and a modified grid street pattern. Downtown Traditional Neighborhoods 2 are predominantly 
residential with some community uses such as churches and schools. Single family detached homes are the most 
common residential building type with secondary uses including smaller multiplex apartments and duplexes. Design 
of residential uses are varied and include small lot single family homes and cottages, larger homes with wraparound 
porches, and many intermediate styles. Street and side yard setbacks are varied. New infill and redevelopment 
should consider the block length, footprints of neighboring adjacent residential uses and building setbacks to create 
cohesion between old and new development. Downtown Transition Neighborhoods located south of Garner Bagnal 
are opportunities for reinvestment in individual properties and neighborhood improvement efforts. Neighborhood 
scale corner store uses are appropriate new uses. The area is unified by a common style of homes, connected 
sidewalks, and street trees.

Pattern & Form 

Modified grid pattern with curvilinear streets and a 
variety of block lengths and setbacks. 

Opportunities 

Accessory dwelling units, a variety of housing type 
choices (see page 37); context-sensitive infill, 
neighborhood aesthetic and connectivity 
improvements. 

Primary Uses 

Residential 

Secondary Uses 

Institutional, neighborhood-scale corner 
commercial/office, pocket parks. 

 

Form Characteristics 
Building Height One to three stories 
Building Orientation Residences oriented towards the primary street, 5-30 ft setbacks. 

Building Types Single family detached homes, a variety of housing type choices (see page 37), 
neighborhood scale commercial buildings at street corners, institutional buildings  

Street Character Local streets with sidewalks on both sides and street trees where space is available 

Parking Character Driveway parking to the rear of properties and in back alleys, some on-street 
parking 

 

  



 

Small Area Plan – Monroe Street 



 
 

 
To: Statesville Planning Board 
 
From: Joseph Campbell, Planner II 
 
Date: January 27, 2026  
 
Subject: Rezoning 
 
Case: ZC26-02 540 Monroe Street 
 
Address:   540 Monroe Street 

 
 Option 1: Approve (Staff Recommendation) 

The zoning amendment is recommended for approval with the agreed upon 
conditions and is consistent with the City’s comprehensive land use plan, is 
reasonable, and in the public interest because the 2045 Land Development Plan 
supports the continuation of residential uses in this area.  

 Option 2: Deny 

The zoning amendment is recommended for denial because it is inconsistent with 
the City’s comprehensive land plan and is not reasonable, nor in the public interest. 
Specifically, the land use plan calls for this area to be redeveloped as Downtown 
Neighborhood 2, and this development is not in harmony with the surrounding area. 
Therefore, allowing this type of residential development would be in conflict with this 
long-term goal.  

  
 ____  
Date:                       Alisha Cordle, Chairperson  Date:             Joseph Campbell, Planner II 



 

City of Statesville 

Staff Report 
To: Planning Board Members 

From: Matthew Kirkendall, Senior Planner 

Date: January 27, 2026 

Re: ZC26-02 149 Weeping Cherry Lane, Statesville, NC; Iredell County Tax Map Parcel # 4735-
17-3043. To remove a portion of the parcel from Statesville’s ETJ (Extra-Territorial 
Jurisdiction). 

Action Requested  

This request, initiated by Mr. Derek Jordan on behalf of the Doris M Johnson Revocable Living Trust 
is to remove a portion of the parcel (approximately 18 acres) located at 149 Weeping Cherry Lane from 
the City’s ETJ (Extra-Territorial Jurisdiction) zoning to Iredell County’s jurisdiction. 

Summary of Information 

This parcel is split zoned between the City of Statesville’s ETJ – R-10 (Urban Low Density Single-
Family Zoning) District and Iredell County RA (Residential Agricultural). Approximately 18 acres of 
the 41.43-acre parent parcel is within the City of Statesville’s ETJ (see survey). The remaining 
approximately 23 acres of the parcel is located in Iredell County.  
 
The property owner is considering subdividing their property into large tracts of land that could be 
served without Statesville utilities. They are asking to be released from Statesville’s jurisdiction to 
Iredell’s jurisdiction to allow such subdivision and subsequent development to occur entirely under the 
County’s rules.   
 
 
The 2045 Land Development Plan shows the property to be in an area suitable for Rural character intent 
which includes residential and agricultural uses. This area is in Tier 3 of the Tiered Growth Map.  
 
The surrounding zoning districts and current land uses are as follows: 
 
North of the Site: Iredell County RA (Residential Agricultural) District, with undeveloped land 

and single-family homes in the Northmont Subdivision. 
 
East of the Site: Iredell County RA (Residential Agricultural) District, with undeveloped land. 
 
South of the Site: Statesville R-10 (Urban Low Density Single-Family), with single-family 

homes along Old Wilkesboro Road and within the Canterbury Subdivision. 



 
 

 
West of the Site: Statesville R-10 (Urban Low Density Single-Family), with single-family 

homes along Old Wilkesboro Road  
 
If this request is approved by City Council, the property will be released to Iredell County to establish 
an appropriate County zoning district.  
 

Previous or Relevant Actions 
 

N/A 
Departmental Recommendation 

The 2045 Land Development Plan is supportive of this request, as it calls for this area to be Rural all 
no utilities are available. 

Therefore, staff recommends approval – option 1 to relinquish the properties from the ETJ. 

Attachments: 

1. Location Map 
2. Zoning Split Map 
3. Aerial Photo Map 
4. Current Zoning & Utilities Map 
5. Site Photos 
6. 2045 LDP Land Use & Character Map 
7. Rural Character Intent 
8. Survey 
9. Zoning Consistency Statement 

 



 

Location Map – 149 Weeping Cherry Lane 



 

Location Map Zoomed In – 149 Weeping Cherry Lane 



 

Aerial Photo – 149 Weeping Cherry Lane 



 

Current Zoning and Utilities Map – 149 Weeping Cherry Lane 



 

Site Photo – 149 Weeping Cherry Lane – From Old Wilkesboro Highway 



 

Site Photo – 149 Weeping Cherry Lane – From Weeping Chery Lane 



 

2045 Land Development Plan – 149 Weeping Cherry Lane 



Statesville LDP 2045  |  Adopted June 6, 2022       68 

Rural 
Character Intent 

On the edges of the planning area outside of the City’s corporate limits and ETJ are areas of undeveloped land, 
farmhouses, agricultural uses, forests, large rural homesteads, and lower density residential neighborhoods built in 
the county. Some rural commercial uses that support residents and farming operations are appropriate at rural 
crossroad intersections. Properties in the Rural Character Area are not expected to be a target of growth over the 
horizon of this Plan; City extension of water and sewer infrastructure is not planned. Some areas may be developed 
at higher intensity in the future and some may be retained as rural indefinitely, providing a rural band of land 
surrounding the city. Where utilities become available sooner than anticipated, a land use and character change to 
Complete Neighborhood 2 is appropriate. The City and County should develop strategies to plan for areas of common 
interest on the edges of jurisdictional boundaries. This collaboration is particularly important to ensure that future 
development in these areas fits the context of the surrounding communities and meets the vision of this Plan. 

Pattern & Form 

Large rural lots with private drives along rural roads 
and open space.  

Opportunities 

Rural-style residences and farms, voluntary 
conservation of private open space, new rural 
economic uses. 

Primary Uses 

Rural residential, agricultural development, and 
undeveloped property. 

Secondary Uses 

Rural commercial, institutions.  

Form Characteristics 
Building Height One to three stories, excluding specific agricultural uses (i.e., silos) 

Building Orientation Residences and other uses oriented towards the primary street, 15-40 ft 
setbacks 

Building Types Single family detached homes, manufactured homes, farm and agricultural 
buildings, small-scale commercial convenience buildings at crossroads 

Street Character Paved rural streets, generally without curb and gutter in the County, and with 
curb and gutter if annexed prior to development 

Parking Character Driveway parking for residences, small surface lots for businesses 
 

  



D.B.J.

D.A.J.

SURVEYOR CERTIFICATION

Doris Mae Johnson
Revocable Living Trust

June -August

1" = 100'

1889-771

4735-17-3043

Weeping Cherry Lane

Statesville Outside and Concord Twsp.

250619

Project Location:

Surveyed by:

Tax Id#:

Deed Ref:

Plat Date:

F
am

ily
 S

ub
-d

iv
is

io
n 

Fo
r :

Revision:

Date:

Revision:

Field Date:

Scale:

Aprvd By:

Job Number:

Project Location:

Project Address:

Drwn By:

Date:

VICINITY MAP

David B. J ordan
&

A sscociates, PLLC
592 Bowles Farm Road
Statesville, N.C. 28625

704-876-6898
Firm# P-2397

I, David B. Jordan certify that this plat was drawn under my supervision from an actual
survey performed under my supervision (deed description recorded in Book 1889, page 771
and Book 236, page 369); that the boundaries not surveyed are clearly indicated as drawn
from information found in Book NA, page NA; that the ratio of precision as calculated is 1:
10,000 + ; that the Global Positioning System (GPS) survey and the following information
was used to perform the GPS (GNSS if dual constellations are used) survey:
Class of survey AA
Positional accuracy 95%+
Type of GPS field procedure: RTK networks
Dates of survey: 08/14/2025
Datum/Epoch: NAD 83(2011) epoch 2010
Published/Fixed-control use: NCGS CORS Network
Geoid model: geoid12
Combined grid factor(s): 0.99990811436635
Units: US Survey feet
That this plat was prepared in accordance with G.S. 47-30 as amended.

Witness my original signature and seal this the __________ day of ________ 2025.

10-12-2025

Iredell County Zoning - RA

City of Statesville Zoning - R-10

Iredell County Zoning - RA

City of Statesville Zoning - R-10

N
A

D
 8

3/
20

11

That the survey is  of another category, such as the recombination of existing parcels, a
court-ordered survey, or other exception to the definition of subdivision.

SURVEY NOTES
 1) Subject Property and adjoining property is Zoned R-A(Iredell County) and R-10 (City of
Statesville).
 2) By Graphic plotting only; Subject property is on FIRM Panel # 37010173500J, and
located in Zone "X", Zone"(shaded)", and Zone"AE" having an effective date of
03-18-2008.
 3) All areas shown are by Coordinate Computation Method.
 4) Linear feet in proposed street N/A.
 5) It is the purpose of this plat to remove property from City of Statesville Zoning
Jurisdiction.
 6) This survey was prepared without the benefit of a title abstract and is made subject to
any discrepancies which may be disclosed by a thorough and accurate title search.
 7) All lots shown are to be served by Individual Septic Systems.
 8) All lots shown are to be served by individual wells.

OWNER CERTIFICATION

Iredell Co.,    N.C.

236-369

2025

SUBDIVISION ADMINISTRATOR

Subdivision AdministratorDate:

Date: Review Officer

STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA
COUNTY OF IREDELL

I hereby certify that the subdivision plat shown hereon has been
found to comply with the Subdivision Regulations of the County
of Iredell, North Carolina and this plat has been approved by the
Subdivision Administrator for recording in the Register Deeds of
Iredell County.

Subdivision Administrator
Iredell County, North Carolina

The Sudivision shown hereon to the best of my knowledge does lie
within the WSIV (PA) South Yadkin as designated by the North
Carolina Division of Environmental Management and as appears on
the Watershed Protection Map of Iredell County.

I,
Review Officer of Iredell County, certify that the map or
plat to which this certification is affixed meets all
statutory requirements for recording.

Zone "X"

Zone "X(Shaded)"

Zone "AE"

Zone "X"Zone "X(Shaded)"
Zone "AE"

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS, that I Phillip R.
Johnson hereby certify that represent the interest of the Doris
Mae Johnson Revocable Living Trust as owner(s) of the
property shown on this plat, that I hereby acknowledge this plat
and allotment to be our free act and do hereby dedicate to
public use all streets alleys, easements and other public areas
shown on this plat. We further certify that David B. Jordan
surveyed and made this plat at our direction, and that the
entire subdivision is within the boundaries of a tract conveyed
to me by a deed recorded on Book 1889, page 771 and Book
236, page 369, Iredell County Registry.

Phillip R. Johnson                                                               Date

and State aforesaid, certify that Phillip R. Johnson
personally appeared before me this day and acknowledged the
execution and foregoing instrument. Witness my hand and seal

My commission expires Notary Public

Derek A. Johnson a Notary Public of the CountyI,

North Carolina, Iredell County

this      day of           , 2025

S
 0

3°
39

'0
0"

W
2

1
3.

10
'

S 
34

°3
7'

37
"W

59
0.

14
'

S
 3

3°
09

'4
0"

W
17

1.
36

'

N 86°49'53"W
135.06'

N 88°27'25"W 274.03'

N 52°16'23"W

100.24'

N 50°41'29"W

97.52'

N 50°46'49"W

104.46

N 4
1°

38
'46

"E

12
5.

64
'

N 43°54'34"W
187.14'

N 48°32'13"W

98.54'

N
 28°29'41"W

93.78

N
 0

3°
47

'1
6 "

E
4

3
7

.2
5'

 to
t a

l

N 73°11'13"W163.01'

S 61°03'39"E 417.83'

S 73°54'42"E 914.43'

S
 0

4°
06

'1
2"

W
4

0
8 .

05
'

N 87°32'04"W 661.71'

S 46
°4

8'2
1"

W
41

8.
84

'

N 88°27'17"E 584.07'

58" oakfound

st
on

e
fo

un
d

60" oak
found

pipe found(bent)

rebar found(bent)

pipefound

S
 0

3°
39

'1
7"

W
2

0
4.

81
'

rebar
found

rebar
found

rebar
set

rebar

found

(bent)

rebar
set

rebar
found

rebar

found

rebar

found

rebar

found

rebar

found

point
point

point

point

rebar

found

rebar
found

pipe

found

rebar
foundN 88°52'37"W

187.13'

axle
found

T-post
found

pipe
found

pip
e

fo
un

d

pip
e

fo
un

d

pip
e

fo
un

d

pi
pe

fo
un

d

ax
le

fo
un

d

Total Area:
43.135 Acres

Course Bearing Distance

L1

L1 S 49°05'46" E 195.16'

L
2

L2 S 00°12'40" W 13.69'

L3

L3 S 13°02'31" W 36.34'

L4

L4 S 30°50'25" W 35.88'

L5

L5 S 41°35'56" W 32.35'

L6

L6 S 43°10'55" E 9.54'

L7

L7 S 43°10'55" E 89.06'

L9

L8
N 24°52'47" E 390.22'

L10

L9
S 65°34'08" W 145.48'

L1
1

L10
N 22°31'44" E 58.97'

L12

L11
N 55°10'14" E 104.88'

Line Table

Weeping Cherry Lane

N
or

th

SITE

Old W
ilk

es
bo

ro
 R

d

N
C

 H
w

y 115

Hea
ve

nly
 D

r

N
or

th
m

on
t D

r

Creekside Dr

Weeping 
Cherry Ln

FOR REVIEW
ONLY

P
R

E L IMINARY

N
O

T
FOR RECORDIN

G

Proposed 25' R/W

Proposed 25' R/W

3
7

5.
37

'
6

1.
88

'

N
 1

3°
11

'1
3"

E
91

2.
43

'

L8

L12

S 43°10'55" E 91.00'

TOTAL AREA
41.430 Acres



 
 
 
To: Statesville Planning Board 
 
From: Matthew Kirkendall, Senior Planner 
 
Date: January 27, 2026  
 
Subject: Rezoning 
 
Case: ETJ Relinquishment – 149 Weeping Cherry Lane 
 
Address:   Property located at 149 Weeping Cherry Lane; Parcel 4735-17-3043 

       
 

 Option 1: Approve (Staff Recommendation)  

The zoning amendment is hereby recommended for approval and is consistent with 
the City’s comprehensive land use plan, is reasonable, and in the public interest 
because: The 2045 Land Development Plan is supportive of this request, as it calls for 
this area to be Rural and no City of Statesville utilities are available.  

 
 Option 2: Deny 

The zoning amendment is hereby recommended for denial because it is inconsistent 
with the City’s comprehensive land plan and is not reasonable, nor in the public 
interest. Specifically, this parcel should remain under the city of Statesville’s zoning 
regulations and future plans for development.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  
 ____  
Date:                                 Alisha Cordle, Chair  Date:             Matthew Kirkendall, Senior Planner 


	1. Planning Board Agenda
	2. Minutes 12-16-2025
	3. Staff Report ZC25-15
	4. Packet Maps ZC25-15
	5. Complete Neighborhood 2 Intent
	6. Rezoning Concept Plan ZC25-15 Harmony Vistas
	7. Harmony Vistas Rezoning Rezoning Concept Plan Access Revision_2025-01-06
	8. Harmony Vistas Rezoning_Community Meeting Report_2025-11-18
	Petitioner: Harmony Investing
	PERSONS AND ORGANIZATIONS CONTACTED WITH DATE AND EXPLANATION OF HOW CONTACTED:
	DATE, TIME AND LOCATION OF MEETING:
	PERSONS IN ATTENDANCE AT MEETING:
	SUMMARY OF PRESENTATION/DISCUSSION:

	9. Consistency Statement PB ZC25-15
	10. Staff Report ZC26-01 540 Monroe St
	11. Location Map ZC26-01 Gray
	12. Aerial Photo ZC26-01 - PP
	13. Site Photos
	14. Current Zoning and Utility Map ZC26-01 (STARS)
	15. 2045 Land Development Plan
	16. Character Intent - 2045 DN2
	17. Small Area Plan
	18. Consistency Statements for PB - ZC26-01 540 Monroe St
	19. Staff Report ZC26-02 149 Weeping Cherry
	20. Packet Maps
	21. Rural Character Intent
	22. Survey
	23. Consistency Statement PB ZC26-02 149 Weeping

